

Protecting and improving the nation's health

# **Learning Disabilities Observatory**

People with learning disabilities in England 2015: data tables

Version 1.0/ November 2016

# About Public Health England

Public Health England exists to protect and improve the nation's health and wellbeing, and reduce health inequalities. We do this through world-class science, knowledge and intelligence, advocacy, partnerships and the delivery of specialist public health services. We are an executive agency of the Department of Health, and are a distinct delivery organisation with operational autonomy to advise and support government, local authorities and the NHS in a professionally independent manner.

Public Health England Wellington House 133-155 Waterloo Road London SE1 8UG

Tel: 020 7654 8000 www.gov.uk/phe Twitter: @PHE\_uk

Facebook: www.facebook.com/PublicHealthEngland

Prepared by: Chris Hatton, Eric Emerson and Gyles Glover

For queries relating to this document, please contact: chris.hatton@lancaster.ac.uk

#### © Crown copyright 2016

You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence v2.0. To view this licence, visit OGL or email psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned. Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to [insert email address].

Published November 2016

PHE publications gateway number: 2016404

This document is available in other formats on request. Please email <a href="mailto:ldt@phe.gov.uk">ldt@phe.gov.uk</a>



# Contents

About Public Health England	2
Introduction	4
About the Learning Disabilities Observatory Data tables	4 6
The number of people with learning disabilities in England Mortality Health services Education	6 6 7
Children's social care	13
Adult social care	14
Employment	31
Safeguarding	33
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards	34
Benefits	35
Family carers	36

# Introduction

#### About the Learning Disabilities Observatory

The Learning Disabilities Observatory (also known as Improving Health and Lives (IHaL)) was set up in April 2010 to provide high quality data and information about the health and healthcare of people with learning disabilities. The information helps commissioners and providers of health and social care to understand the needs of people with learning disabilities, their families and carers, and, ultimately, to deliver better healthcare.

The Public Health England Learning Disabilities Observatory is a collaboration between Public Health England (PHE), the Centre for Disability Research at Lancaster University and the National Development Team for Inclusion.

National statistical information on the characteristics of people with learning disabilities, and the services and supports they and their families use, is collected by several government departments and made publically available through a number of diverse channels. The aim of this report is, within a single publication, to provide a concise summary of this information and to provide links to key data collections.

All the information contained in this report relates to people with learning disabilities in England. Most of the data sources are based on a comprehensive national census of activity at either a given point in time or over a given period. That is, they are not based on samples of people with learning disabilities (representative or otherwise). We have clearly indicated where this is not the case.

In each area we have reported the most recent data that is available. In most instances this relates to activity in 2014/15. Wherever possible we have also included data from previous years in order to identify trends over time. In many instances, however, this has been problematic due to changes in the way that data has been collected over time.

This report is the fifth in an a series. Previous reports are:

- People with learning disabilities in England 2010
   www.ihal.org.uk/publications/932/People\_with\_Learning\_Disabilities\_in\_England\_20
   10
- People with learning disabilities in England 2011
   www.ihal.org.uk/publications/1063/People\_with\_Learning\_Disabilities\_in\_England\_2
   011

- People with learning disabilities in England 2012
   www.ihal.org.uk/publications/1185/People\_with\_Learning\_Disabilities\_in\_England\_2
   012
- People with learning disabilities in England 2013
   www.ihal.org.uk/publications/1241/People\_with\_Learning\_Disabilities\_in\_England\_2
   013

In previous years' reports, the detailed data tables have been included within the main body of the report. In this year's report, to improve the readability of the report, more information is summarised in graphical form and the data tables are published separately in this report.

Detailed local information and comparisons for many of the indicators in this report are available in Public Health England's learning disability profiles, available here: fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/learning-disabilities

Enquiries about the information contained in this report should be directed to: info@ihal.org.uk

# Data tables

### The number of people with learning disabilities in England

Table 2.1. Numbers of people on GP learning disability registers, percentage year on year change and prevalence per 1,000 people, England, 2006/07 to 2014/15

Year	Number	Year on year percentage change in number	Prevalence per 1,000
		For people aged 18 and older	
2006/07	139,321	-	-
2007/08	144,909	+3.9%	-
2008/09	160,165	+9.5%	3.7
2009/10	179,064	+10.6%	4.2
2010/11	188,819	+5.2%	4.3
2011/12	198,877	+5.1%	4.5
2012/13	206,132	+3.5%	4.7
2013/14	214,352	+4.0%	4.8
		All ages	
2014/15	252,446	-	4.4

### Mortality

No additional data tables

#### Health services

Table 4.1. Time trends in the number of learning disability health checks performed, the number of people eligible and the population coverage

Year	Number of people who received a check	Number of people reported as eligible for a check	Number of people on GP learning disability register	Proportion of those reported as eligible who received a check	Proportion of those on GP learning disability register who received a check
2008/09	27,011	118,230	160,165	22.8%	16.9%
2009/10	58,919	145,130	179,064	40.6%	32.9%
2010/11*	73,068	153,021	188,819	47.8%	38.7%
2011/12*	86,134	162,991	198,877	52.8%	43.3%
2012/13	92,329	177,389	206,132	52.0%	44.8%
2013/14	94,647	Not collected	214,352	-	44.2%
2014/15	124,785 <sup>†</sup>	197,451 <sup>†</sup>	252,485 <sup>‡</sup>	63.2%	49.4%

<sup>\*</sup>revised data. †In 2014/15 the programme was expanded from covering adults aged 18+ to include young people aged 14-17. ‡In 2014/15 GP learning disability registers were expanded from covering adults aged 18+ to all ages.

Table 4.2. Finished consultant episodes (FCEs) and average occupied beds for an average total population of 250,000; percentage used by people identified by GP as having learning disabilities.

Chacialty	Per 250,000 po	pulation, per year	Proportion involving a person with learning disabilities		
Specialty	FCEs	Average occupied beds	FCEs	Average occupied beds	
Medicine and medical specialties	36757.1	363.1	0.8%	0.9%	
Surgery and surgical specialties	23915.4	189.6	0.6%	0.7%	
Obstetrics and Gynaecology	8312.5	50.4	0.3%	0.3%	
Paediatrics and paediatric specialties	3755.0	22.0	2.4%	3.5%	
Anaesthetics and Critical Care	1076.9	5.4	0.4%	1.2%	
Dentistry	126.2	0.4	5.8%	4.6%	
Other	5246.4	39.3	0.8%	0.7%	
All non-psychiatric	79189.5	670.2	0.8%	0.9%	
Psychiatry	663.0	63.9	6.3%	4.5%	
All	79852.5	734.1	0.8%	1.2%	

Source: Clinical Practice Research Datalink, April 2010 to March 2014.

### Education

Table 5.1: To SEN associated and state further than the state further than the state further than the state further than the state of t	ated with lea	arning disa	bilities in s	tate funded	primary an	d seconda	ry schools
	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	% Change
							2009/10 -
							2014/15
							(compound
							annual
							growth rate)
MLD	41,030	36,645	34,715	33,455	32,410	31,115	-5.4%
SLD	25,230	26,045	26,880	27,540	28,330	28,940	+2.8%
PMLD	8,680	9,100	9,460	9,715	9,810	10,010	+2.9%
Total	74,940	71,790	71,055	70,710	70,550	70,065	-1.3%
Data presented i	n: Special Educa	tional Needs in	England, Januar	y 2015			

Table 5.2: The number of children at School Action Plus (2009/10 to 2013/14) and SEN support (2014/15) with a primary SEN associated with learning disabilities in state funded primary and secondary schools and state funded and non-maintained special schools in England, 2010 to 2015

	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	%Change 2009/10 – 2013/14 (compound annual growth			
							rate)			
MLD	130,620	124,105	114,805	104,900	97,420	209,970	-7.1%			
SLD	3,620	3,225	3,055	2,900	2,715	3,150	-3.4%			
PMLD	720	795	795	805	775	905	+1.9%			
Total	134,960	128,125	118,655	108,605	100,910	214,025	-7.0%			
Data presented	Data presented in: Special Educational Needs in England, January 2015									

Table 5.3: Number and identification rate per 1,000 children of girls and boys with
primary SEN (School Action Plus/SEN support or with statement/EHC plan)
associated with learning disabilities in January 2015, England

associated with learning disabilities in January 2013, England									
		Girls with type of Primary SEN		ith type of Primary	Pupils with Primary Need of SEN Associated with Learning Disabilities				
	Number	Identification rate per 1,000 children	Number	Identification rate per 1,000 children	Number	Identification rate per 1,000 children			
MLD	94,060	25	147,070	37	241,130	31			
SLD	11,350	3	20,745	5	32,095	4			
PMLD	4,705	1	6,205	2	10,910	1			
Total	110,115	29	174,020	44	284,135	36			
Data extracted fro	m: Special Edu	cational Needs in Engla	nd, January	y 2015					

		MLD	SLD	PMLD	Any SEN associated with LD
White		34.89	4.19	1.21	40.29
	White British	34.97	4.25	1.20	40.43
	Irish	28.41	4.19	1.26	33.86
	Traveller of Irish heritage	131.44	6.26	2.09	139.79
	Gypsy / Roma	104.66	6.09	1.70	112.45
	Any other White background	28.80	3.16	1.25	33.22
Mixed	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	31.07	3.90	1.42	36.39
	White and Black Caribbean	40.75	3.65	1.22	45.63
	White and Black African	30.12	3.86	1.41	35.39
	White and Asian	24.65	3.49	1.21	29.35
	Any other mixed background	27.76	4.33	1.74	33.84
Asian		32.67	4.93	2.18	39.79
	Indian	20.17	3.30	1.30	24.77
	Pakistani	45.91	6.24	2.99	55.14
	Bangladeshi	30.56	4.61	2.06	37.24
	Any other Asian background	22.56	4.69	1.72	28.98
Black		34.42	5.21	1.62	41.25
	Black Caribbean	43.52	4.54	1.30	49.36
	Black African	30.84	5.24	1.70	37.78
	Any other Black background	35.80	6.32	1.79	43.90
Chinese		11.17	3.06	1.15	15.38
Any oth	er ethnic group	33.18	4.04	2.00	39.21
Ethnic g	roup recorded	34.32	4.30	1.36	39.98
Ethnic g	roup not recorded	30.66	4.73	1.20	36.59
All		34.28	4.30	1.36	39.94

		of children with m schools 2009		ssociated with	learning disabi	lities and a stat	ement/EHC	plan being
	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	Compound
								Annual Growth
								Rate
MLD	52.4%	51.2%	50.5%	49.8%	48.8%	47.4%	46.3%	-2.04%
SLD	18.0%	17.0%	16.2%	15.5%	15.1%	14.1%	14.1%	-3.99%
PMLD	14.6%	14.4%	14.5%	13.8%	13.4%	13.3%	14.0%	-0.70%
Total	36.4%	34.8%	33.5%	32.0%	30.8%	29.3%	28.4%	-4.05%

Table 5.6: Av 2013/14	erage perce	entage of ha	alf-day sess	ions missed	d due to au	thorised and	d unauthori	sed absences, 2007/8 to
2013/14	2007/8	2008/9	2009/10	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	Compound Annual Growth Rate
Authorised								
MLD	6.8	6.7	6.4	6.1	5.4	5.4	4.7	-6.0%
SLD	7.3	7.5	7.2	7.1	6.6	6.7	6.1	-3.0%
PMLD	12.6	13.4	13.7	13.3	12.9	13.3	12.9	+0.4%
All children	n/a	5.2	5.0	4.7	3.7	4.2	3.5	-7.6%
Unauthorised								
MLD	2.2	2.3	2.2	2.3	2.0	2.1	2.0	-1.6%
SLD	1.0	1.0	1.0	0.9	0.7	0.8	0.8	-3.7%
PMLD	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.9	0.8	+2.3%
All children	n/a	1.1	1.0	1.1	0.7	1.1	1.0	-1.9%
Total								
MLD	9.0	9.0	8.6	8.3	7.4	7.5	6.6	-5.0%
SLD	8.2	8.5	8.2	8.0	7.4	7.5	6.9	-2.8%
PMLD	13.3	14.2	14.4	14.0	13.6	14.2	13.7	+0.5%
All children	6.3	6.3	6.0	5.8	4.4	5.3	4.5	-5.5%

Table 5.7: Reasons for absences from school of children with primary SEN associated with learning disabilities, England 2013/14									
	MLD	SLD	PMLD	No Identified SEN					
Authorised									
Illness (not medical or dental appointments)	49.2%	56.7%	61.7%	60.5%					
Medical/dental appointments	7.8%	15.6%	16.6%	6.6%					
Agreed family holiday	1.7%	5.7%	3.4%	2.9%					
Excluded, no alternative provision	2.6%	0.5%	0.1%	0.7%					
Study leave	0.3%	0.1%	0.0%	0.8%					
Religious observance	0.7%	0.9%	0.6%	1.1%					
Traveller absence	0.6%	0.2%	0.0%	0.2%					
Other authorised circumstances	7.3%	8.3%	11.5%	5.3%					
Unauthorised									
Family holiday not agreed	3.8%	2.3%	1.0%	6.6%					
Arrived late	1.9%	1.0%	0.5%	1.2%					
Other unauthorised circumstances	21.7%	7.4%	3.9%	11.9%					
No reason yet	2.4%	1.4%	0.8%	2.1%					

	Table 5.8: Percentage of children with primary SEN associated with learning disabilities excluded from school, England 2006/7 to 2013/14										
	2006/7	2007/8	2008/9	2009/10	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	Compound Annual Growth Rate		
Fixed Term											
MLD	6.8%	6.4%	n/a	5.8%	5.8%	6.3%	5.1%	4.9%	-4.6%		
SLD	2.3%	2.0%	n/a	1.4%	1.8%	1.6%	1.1%	1.1%	-10.0%		
PMLD	0.7%	0.6%	n/a	0.4%	0.6%	0.4%	0.4%	0.3%	-11.4%		
Children	1.8%	1.5%	n/a	1.5%	1.5%	1.8%	1.5%	1.5%	-2.6%		
without SEN											
Permanent											
MLD	0.3%	0.2%	n/a	n/a	0.1%	0.2%	0.2%	0.2%	n/c		
SLD	0.2%	0.0%	n/a	n/a	0.1%	0.0%	<0.1%	<0.1%	n/c		
PMLD	0.0%	0.0%	n/a	n/a	0.0%	0.0%	n/c	n/c	n/c		
Children	<0.1	<0.1%	<0.1%	<0.1%	<0.1%	<0.1%	<0.1%	<0.1%	n/c		
without SEN	%										

n/c Not calculated as numbers are too small

Table 5.9: Reasons given for exclusion of pupils, 2013/14									
	Children without SEN	MLD	SLD	PMLD					
Fixed Term									
Persistent disruptive behaviour	22.7	28.0	23.5	29.7					
Physical assault against a pupil	21.0	18.5	17.0	23.4					
Other	19.7	14.3	7.3	n/c					
Verbal abuse/ threatening behaviour against an adult	17.5	18.4	16.0	12.5					
Verbal abuse/ threatening behaviour against a pupil	4.3	4.7	3.9	0.0					
Drug and alcohol related	4.3	1.5	0.7	0.0					
Physical assault against an adult	2.6	7.7	24.5	29.7					
Theft	2.0	1.4	1.0	0.0					
Damage	1.9	2.0	1.8	0.0					
Bullying	1.6	1.2	1.5	0.0					
Racist abuse	1.6	1.6	1.8	0.0					
Sexual misconduct	0.9	0.8	0.9	n/c					
Permanent									
Persistent disruptive behaviour	26.7	34.8	n/c	0.0					
Physical assault against a pupil	17.5	18.1	n/c	n/c					
Other	16.1	14.1	0.0	0.0					
Drug and alcohol related	13.8	5.3	0.0	0.0					
Verbal abuse/ threatening behaviour against an adult	8.4	5.7	0.0	0.0					
Physical assault against an adult	7.5	11.5	46.2	0.0					
Verbal abuse/ threatening behaviour against a pupil	4.4	6.6	n/c	0.0					
Theft	1.6	n/c	0.0	0.0					
Sexual misconduct	1.6	n/c	0.0	0.0					
Damage	1.2	n/c	0.0	0.0					
Bullying	1.0	n/c	0.0	0.0					
Racist abuse	n/c	0.0	0.0	0.0					

#### Children's social care

Table 6.1: Number an	nd (for 2015) p	ercentage of C	hildren in Nee	d with disabilit	y associated w	vith learning, E	England 31 Mar	ch 2010-2015
	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	As % of	Compound
							children (2015)	Annual Growth
								Rate (Number
								of Children)
England	25,100	26,076	23,776	24,686	23,302	23,216	0.20%	-1.6%
North East	1,331	1,724	1,456	1,564	1,552	1,404	0.27%	+1.1%
North West	3,098	2,910	2,599	2,666	2,785	2,657	0.18%	-3.0%
Yorkshire & Humber	2,487	2,700	2,511	2,477	2,408	2,430	0.21%	-0.5%
East Midlands	1,369	1,640	1,584	1,512	1,292	1,128	0.12%	-3.8%
West Midlands	2,607	2,947	2,309	2,430	2,212	2,639	0.21%	+0.2%
East of England	1,981	2,598	2,561	2,432	2,187	2,142	0.17%	+1.6%
London	3,796	4,296	3,766	3,766	3,354	3,418	0.18%	-2.1%
South East	3,397	4,091	4,192	4,412	4,228	3,888	0.20%	+2.7%
South West	2,851	3,189	2,868	3,418	3,187	3,477	0.32%	+4.1%

Table 6.2: Number and percentage of children who have been looked after continuously for at least 12 months by the Local Authority with SEN associated with learning disabilities, England 31 March 2010-2014 **Compound Annual** Number As % of looked after children Growth Rate 2011-13 (Number) 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 **England** MLD 3,000 3,080 3,080 3,030 21% 21% 20% 19% +0.3% 19% 2,980 SLD 680 680 750 970 1,030 5% 5% 5% 6% 6% +10.9% n/a 310 320 420 420 n/a 2% 2% 3% 3% +10.7% **PMLD** n/a 4,070 4,470 n/a 27% 27% 28% 28% +3.3% Total 4,060 4,480

#### Adult social care

Table 7.1: Number of adul	ts with lear	ning disa	bilities ag	ed 18-64	years in	England ir	accommodation 1 April - 31 March
	2009/10	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	
Rough sleeper/squatting	40	25	25	25	95	<u>10</u>	
Night shelter/emergency hostel/direct access hostel (temp accomm accepting self-	70	55	55	65	65	<u>50</u>	
referrals)							
Refuge	10	10	10	10	5	<u>5</u>	
Placed in temp accomm by council (inc homelessness settlement) eg B&B,	210	195	170	305	195	<u>140</u>	
Staying with family/ friends as short-term guest	745	625	765	770	810	<u>620</u>	
Acute/long stay healthcare residential facility or hospital	1295	1045	1230	1075	1035	<u>490</u>	
Registered care home	24830	23465	26195	26625	25755	<u>23215</u>	
Registered nursing home	1830	1290	1610	1665	2040	<u>1360</u>	
Prison/young offenders institution/detention centre	30	30	45	40	40	<u>15</u>	
Other temp accomm	705	1245	1150	665	810	<u>445</u>	
TOTAL NON-SETTLED	29765	27990	31255	31245	30845	<u>26350</u>	

ACCOMMODATION							
Owner occupier/shared ownership scheme	2755	2340	2885	2640	3755	<u>2460</u>	
Tenant – LA/arms length mgt org/registered social landlord/housing assn	13460	13395	14785	15190	16690	<u>12425</u>	
Tenant – private landlord	3710	4010	4605	5030	4815	<u>3960</u>	
Settled mainstream housing with family/ friends (inc flat-sharing)	41590	41205	48785	50930	52090	<u>44785</u>	
Supported accomm/ supported lodgings/ supported group home	17655	17610	21420	24700	24485	<u>23075</u>	
Adult placement scheme/shared lives	2695	2675	3805	3415	3550	<u>3100</u>	
Approved premises for offenders released from prison or under probation supervision	35	40	205	35	35	<u>15</u>	
Sheltered housing/ extra care housing/ other sheltered housing	640	675	835	985	890	<u>1195</u>	
Mobile accomm for Gypsy/Roma and Traveller community	20	35	25	25	25	<u>55</u>	
TOTAL SETTLED ACCOMMODATION	82565	81985	97360	102945	106335	<u>91070</u>	
Accommodation unknown						<u>7025</u>	
TOTAL KNOWN TO COUNCIL	136350	138995	139090	140015	141980	124000°	

Data Source: NASCIS ASC -CAR (Adult Social Care – Combined Activity returns) Table L2 up to 2013/14; SALT LTS004b 2014/15 n/c Percentage change not calculated where n<100

Defined in 2014/15 SALT as total number of adults with learning disabilities receiving long-term support from the council

Table 7.2: Total number of adults with learning disabilities in England aged 18+ using short-term residential services supported by local authorities Year **Compound Annual Percentage** Change 2005/2006 to 2007/ 2005/ 2006/ 2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 2011/ 2012/ 2013/ 2013/2014 Age 18 to 64 -2.6% Age 65+ +2.4% -2.3% **Total** Data Source: NASCIS RAP (Referrals, Assessments and Packages of Care) Table P2F

Table 7.3: N	Table 7.3: Number of adults with learning disabilities in England supported by local authorities at 31 March in residential care										
			Year								Compound Annual Percentage Change
	2005/ 2006	2006/ 2007	2007/ 2008	2008/ 2009	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2014/ 2015	2005/06 to 2013/14
Aged 18-64											
Adult Placement	1670	2225	2255	3055	3195	3265	3595	3580	3855	<u>n/a</u>	+11.0%
Nursing Care	1840	1865	1735	1640	1560	1505	1290	1240	1180	<u>1060</u>	-5.4%
Independent Residential Care	28550	28340	27630	27120	26455	26410	27045	26260	25905		-1.2%
Council Staffed Residential Care	3200	3075	2895	2735	2525	2265	1990	1690	1485	<u>25075</u>	-9.2%
Total	35260	35510	34520	34550	33735	33445	33920	32770	32425	<u>n/c</u>	-1.0%

Aged 65+											
Adult Placement	170	230	220	290	330	335	365	425	460	n/a	+13.3%
Nursing Care	605	585	580	510	915	540	745	690	665	<u>670</u>	+1.2%
Independent Residential Care	3255	3325	3515	3490	3855	3750	4915	4890	4750		+4.8%
Council Staffed Residential Care	400	400	370	395	345	290	325	255	195	<u>6000</u>	-8.6%
Total	4435	4535	4685	4685	5445	4915	6350	6255	6070	<u>n/c</u>	+4.0%
Total Aged 18+	•										
Adult Placement	1790	2455	2475	3345	3525	3600	3960	4005	4315	<u>n/c</u>	+11.6%
Nursing Care	2440	2450	2315	2150	2475	2045	2035	1930	1845	<u>1730</u>	-3.4%
Independent Residential Care	31575	31660	31145	30610	30310	30165	31960	31150	30655		-0.4%
Council Staffed Residential Care	3595	3475	3265	3130	2870	2560	2315	1945	1680	<u>30500</u>	-9.1%
Total (VPN transfers)	39400	40040	39200	39235	39185	38365	40270 (-1840)	39025 (-1840)	38500 (-1840)	n/c	-0.3%
Total without VPN transfers							38430	37185	36660	<u>n/c</u>	-0.9%
Data Source: 20	Data Source: 2005/06 to 2013/14: NASCIS ASC-CAR (Adult Social Care – Combined Activity Returns) Table S1. 2014/15 SALT Table LTS001a										

Table 7.4: Number of adults with learning disabilities aged 18+ in England permanently admitted to Local Authority supported residential care (excluding group homes) 1 April- 31 March **Compound Annual** Year Percentage Change 2005/ 2006/ 2007/ 2012/ 2013/ 2008/ 2009/ 2010/ 2011/ 2005/6 to 2013/14 Aged 18-64 **Adult Placement** +17.0% **Nursing Care** -7.5% **Residential Care** -2.9% Independent -2.4% n/c Local Auth. -0.6% Total Aged 65+ n/c **Adult Placement** n/c **Nursing Care** +2.8% **Residential Care** Independent +3.4% Local Auth. n/c Total +2.2% Total Aged 18+ **Adult Placement** +18.1% **Nursing Care** -5.7% **Residential Care** -2.2% Independent -1.7% n/c Local Auth. Total -0.1% **VPN** transfers (-1840)**Total without VPN transfers** Data Source: NASCIS ASC-CAR (Adult Social Care – Combined Activity Returns) Table S3 n/c Percentage change not calculated where n<100

Table 7.5: Total number of adults with learning disabilities in England aged 18+ using other community services supported by local authorities										
Adults with learning	Year									Compound Annual Percentage
disabilities	2005/	2006/	2007/	2008/	2009/	2010/	2011/	2012/	2013/	Change 2005/06 to 2013/14
	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	
Equipment & adaptatio	ons									
Age 18 to 64	5,200	5,605	6,670	7,575	8,380	8,620	8,510	8,450	9,525	+7.9%
Age 65+	780	905	1,230	1,055	1,095	1,255	1,280	1,410	1,570	+9.1%
Total	5,980	6,515	7,900	8,630	9,475	9,875	9,790	9,860	11,095	+8.0%
Day services										
Age 18 to 64	55,000	54,500	54,465	54,100	49,695	48,985	48,315	47,815	45,965	-2.2%
Age 65+	3,020	2,995	3,455	3,365	3,145	3,165	3,395	3,480	3,590	+2.2%
Total	58,020	57,495	57,920	57,465	52,840	52,150	51,710	51,300	49,555	-2.0%
Home care										
Age 18 to 64	23,865	26,250	29,275	33,315	33,515	35,580	35,245	36,855	37,325	+5.8%
Age 65+	2,805	3,365	4,120	4,130	4,355	4,740	4,960	5,345	5,700	+9.3%
Total	26,670	29,615	33,390	37,445	37,870	40,320	40,205	42,200	43,025	+6.2%
Meals										
Age 18 to 64	685	900	945	650	485	420	315	240	210	-13.7%
Age 65+	455	465	615	400	355	295	265	210	155	-12.6%
Total	1,140	1,365	1,560	1,050	840	715	580	450	365	-13.3%
Professional support										
Age 18 to 64	35,925	39,685	40,635	41,050	37,815	33,165	26,995	20,760	19,520	-7.4%
Age 65+	2,235	2,565	2,945	2,760	2,655	2,230	2,080	1,640	1,515	-4.7%
Total	38,155	42,245	43,580	43,810	40,470	35,395	29,075	22,400	21,035	-7.2%
Other										
Age 18 to 64	16,050	18,310	18,545	19,475	18,060	20,555	20,970	19,825	21,240	+3.6%

Age 65+	965	1,215	1,475	1,240	1,245	1,700	1,945	1,875	2,190	+10.8%
Total	17,020	19,525	20,015	20,715	19,310	22,255	22,920	21,700	23,430	+4.1%
Total number of adul	ts using non-res	sidential con	nmunity serv	vices suppor	ted by local	authorities				
Age 18 to 64	96,280	99,400	101,440	102,145	102,985	103,800	104,320	104,840	107,055	+1.3%
Age 65+	6,870	7,740	9,310	8,080	8,130	8,405	9,185	9,425	9,970	+4.8%
Total	103,150	107,140	110,745	110,225	111,115	112,205	113,505	114,265	117,025	+1.6%
Data Source: NASCIS RAP (Referrals, Assessments and Packages of Care) Table P2F										

Type of self-directed	Yea	r					Compound Annual Percentage
support	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2014/ 2015	Change 2009/10 to 2013/14
Adults aged 18-64 years					-	-	
Direct payment only	16,940	18,255	18,380	18,600	20,715	<u>21,580</u>	+5.2%
Part direct payment	1,795	4,580	7,745	11,560	13,320	<u>13,265</u>	+65.1%
Council services only	4,870	19,790	35,190	49,050	54,490	<u>49,150</u>	+82.9%
TOTAL	8,900	31,535	54,405	75,745	85,560	<u>83,995</u>	+76.1%
Adults aged 65+ years							
Direct payment only	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>620</u>	n/
Part direct payment	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>505</u>	n/
Council services only	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>5,920</u>	n/
TOTAL						7,045	n/

Table 7.7: Number of new adult clients with learning disabilities with completed assessments and number of existing adult clients with learning disabilities with completed reviews 1 April to 31 March

	Year									Compound Annual Percentage Change 2005/06 to 2013/14
	2005/ 2006	2006/ 2007	2007/ 2008	2008/ 2009	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2003/00 to 2013/14
New adult clients w	New adult clients with learning disabilities with completed assessments									
Age 18 to 64	6,625	7,070	7,930	8,025	10,360	10,525	9,890	11,050	12,340	+8.1%
Age 65+	940	790	1,125	695	2,570	2,500	875	1,565	1,325	+4.4%
Total	7,560	7,860	9,055	8,720	12,930	13,025	10,765	12,615	13,665	+7.7%
Existing adult client	s with learnin	g disabilities	s with comp	leted review	rs					
Age 18 to 64	77,920	87,910	93,185	94,745	98,625	92,860	85,605	83,200	87,275	+1.4%
Age 65+	7,185	8,440	9,510	9,650	9,665	9,090	8,955	9,490	10,275	+4.6%
Total	85,105	96,350	102,695	104,400	108,290	101,950	94,565	92,960	97,550	+1.7%
Total adults with lea	arning disabili	ties with co	mpleted ass	essments or	reviews					
Age 18 to 64	84,545	94,980	101,115	102,770	108,985	103,385	95,495	94,250	99,615	+2.1%
Age 65+	8,125	9,230	10,635	10,345	12,235	11,590	9,830	11,055	11,600	+4.6%
Total	92,670	104,210	111,750	113,115	121,220	114,975	105,325	105,305	111,215	+2.3%
Data Source: NASCIS RAP (Referrals, Assessments and Packages of Care) Table A1, Table A7, Table A11B										

Table 7.8: Number of new and existing adult clients with learning disabilities where the sequel to a request for support was short-term support to maximise independence, and what followed (2014/15)

		2014/15
	New clients	Existing clients
Total requests made	555	1200
What followed the request	•	
No services provided – no identified needs	220 (40%)	465 (39%)
No services provided – needs identified but support declined	10 (2%)	5 (0%)
No services provided – needs identified but self-funding	0 (0%)	0 (0%)
No services provided – information, advice, signposting, universal services	30 (5%)	15 (1%)
Early cessation of service (not leading to long-term support)	35 (6%)	25 (2%)
Ongoing low-level support	35 (6%)	105 (9%)
Short-term support (other)	35 (6%)	50 (4%)
Early cessation of service (leading to long-term support)	15 (3%)	10 (1%)
Long-term support (any setting)	175 (32%)	525 (44%
Data Source: SALT Table STS002ab; Table STS002bb		

Table 7.9: Local authority gross current expenditure relating to residential personal social services for adults with learning disabilities (in £ millions)

dicabilities (i											
Gross Current Expenditure (in £ millions)	2005/ 2006	2006/ 2007	Year 2007/ 2008	2008/	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012 <sup>2</sup>	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2014/ 2015	Compound Annual Growth Rate at Constant Prices 2005/6 to 2013/14 <sup>1</sup>
Adults aged 18-64	4 years										
Nursing care placements	77.1	72.5	65.9	73.0	73.7	74.6	86.2	91.1	81.7	<u>57.6</u>	-0.5%
Residential care placements	1393.6	1459.1	1527.3	1578.2	1583.5	1546.1	2019.9	2000.1	1979.8	<u>1695.9</u>	+3.2%
Supported and other accommodation	191.2	228.3	268.8	334.4	397.7	483.3	764.5	867.5	1001.1	1207.7 <sup>a</sup>	+21.5%
Supporting People	196.7	171.2	162.5	157.2	161.3	148.8	124.5	108.8	84.5	n/a	n/c
Adults aged 65+ y	ears/										
Nursing care placements	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>27.3</u>	n/c
Residential care placements	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>251.1</u>	n/c
Supported and other accommodation	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	142.7 a	n/c
Supporting	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>n/a</u>	n/c

\_

Adjusted for inflation using the personal social services, all sectors, adults only, pay and prices index (excluding capital) (inflation indices table 16.4.1) from Curtis, L. (2015) *Unit Costs of Health and Social Care 2015.* Personal Social Services Research Unit, University of Kent, Canterbury. http://www.pssru.ac.uk/project-pages/unit-costs/2015/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Gross expenditure costs for 2011/12 include costs transferred from the NHS to social services under Valuing People Now (for people with learning disabilities) and the NHS transfer. The report Personal Social Services: Expenditure and Unit Costs England 2011-12 – Final Release (https://catalogue.ic.nhs.uk/publications/social-care/expenditure/pss-exp-eng-11-12-fin/pss-exp-eng-11-12-fin-rpt.pdf) estimates that the funding transferred from the NHS to local authorities concerning all services for adults with learning disabilities totalled £872 million.

People											
Total adults aged 1	L8+ years										
Nursing care placements	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>84.9</u>	n/c
Residential care placements	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>1947.0</u>	n/c
Supported and other accommodation	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	<u>1350.4</u>	n/c
Supporting People	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/c

Data Source: NASCIS PSSEX (Personal social services expenditure data) Gross Current Expenditure 2005/06 to 2013/14; ASC-FR 2014/15

a) Combines the categories of supported accommodation and supported living

		Ye	ar								Compound Annual
	2005/ 2006	2006/ 2007	2007/ 2008	2008/ 2009	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2014/ 2015	Growth Rate at constant prices 2005/06 to 2013/14
Adults aged 18-	64 years										
Gross expenditure on home care	288.1	349.1	390.0	464.8	488.9	557.1	658.7	655.5	676.1	<u>351.6</u>	+9.9%
Gross social services expenditure on direct payments	42.2	60.8	87.3	132.5	198.4	260.3	324.7	385.2	449.2	<u>456.5</u>	+32.8%
Gross social services expenditure on day services	620.5	638.9	660.1	693.3	731.6	719.6	720.9	681.5	662.6		-0.4%
Gross expenditure on other services	93.5	109.2	88.0	115.9	100.9	145.2	169.3	144.7	148.8	610.6ª	+4.7%
Gross expenditure on meals	1.3	1.0	0.9	1.2	0.8	0.7	0.6	0.5	0.5		-12.1%

Gross expenditure on equipment & adaptation	0.8	0.9	2.5	2.3	6.7	6.3	5.5	4.5	5.5	n/a	+25.4%
Gross expenditure on assessment and care management	205.4	201.3	199.8	254.5	269.2	247.0	291.4	292.6	285.5	n/a	+3.0%
Gross expenditure on short-term support to maximise independence	n/a	22.7	n/c								
Gross expenditure on other short-term support	n/a	<u>42.7</u>	n/c								
Adults aged 65+	years										
Gross expenditure on long-term support: home care	n/a	<u>46.8</u>	n/c								
Gross expenditure on long-term support: direct payments	n/a	21.5	n/c								
Gross expenditure on other long-	n/a	<u>50.7</u>	n/c								

term care											
Gross expenditure on short-term support to maximise independence	n/a	<u>1.9</u>	n/c								
Gross expenditure on other short-term support	n/a	<u>5.8</u>	n/c								

Data Source: NASCIS PSSEX (Personal social services expenditure data) Gross Current Expenditure and Unit Costs of Other Community Services 2005/06 to 2013/14 ASC-FR 2014/15. a) Category in ASC-FR 'Community – long-term support: other long-term care

Unit Costs					Year				Compound Annual Growth Rate at Constant Prices 2007/2008 to	
									2013/2014	
	2007/ 2008	2008/ 2009	2009/ 2010	2010/ 2011	2011/ 2012	2012/ 2013	2013/ 2014	2014/ 2015		
Adults with learni	ng disabil	lities age	d 18-64 y	ears						
Residential service	es									
Nursing care	852	992	1108	1196	1183	1303	1250	<u>1119</u>	+5.8%	
Residential care	1061	1132	1224	1277	1315	1343	1340	<u>1336</u>	+3.2%	
Community service	es									
Day services	298	324	na	364	358	333	345	<u>n/a</u>	+1.7%	
Home care	352	381	na	484	480	463	447	<u>n/a</u>	+3.3%	
Direct payments										
Direct payments	191	222	na	230	270	276	289	<u>n/a</u>	+6.4%	
Adults with learni	ng disabil	lities age	d 65+ yea	ırs						
Residential service	es									
Nursing care	n/a	<u>741</u>	n/c							
Residential care	n/a	<u>899</u>	n/c							
Data Source: NAS	CIS PSSEX	(Persona	l social se	rvices expe	enditure da	ıta) Unit Cos	sts 2007/08	3 to 2013/1	4; ASC-FR unit costs 2014/15	

Survey Findings		Learning D	isabilities			Physical Dis	abilities			Mental Hea	lth	
	2011/	2012/	2013/	2014/	2011/	2012/	2013/	2014/	2011/	2012/	2013/	2014/
	2012	2013	2014	2015	2012	2013	2014	2015	2012	2013	2014	2015
Methodological issues												
Number of survey respondents	10,575	12,060	13,660	14,315	42,455	46,510	48,370	40,165	9,075	9,320	10,105	7,045
% completed survey by themselves	9%	8%	7%	7%	33%	32%	31%	27%	37%	33%	31%	37%
% completed survey with help from												
A care worker	51%	52%	52%	53%	12%	13%	13%	14%	21%	24%	25%	28%
Someone living in	25%	26%	26%	26%	19%	20%	20%	18%	16%	16%	16%	14%
household												
Someone living outside	15%	15%	14%	13%	35%	36%	36%	41%	26%	28%	29%	21%
household												
% had help from												
Didn't have help		7%	7%	6%		30%	29%	25%		31%	29%	36%
Someone else read Qs		63%	63%	63%		40%	40%	43%		39%	40%	40%
to me												
Someone else	Data not	62%	61%	61%	Data not	9%	9%	8%		10%	8%	8%
translated Qs for me	collected				collected				Data not			
Someone else wrote	conceted	48%	48%	48%	conceted	37%	37%	39%	collected	28%	29%	24%
down answers for me												
Talked through Qs with		28%	27%	27%		29%	29%	30%		26%	26%	25%
someone else												
Someone answered for		9%	10%	9%		8%	8%	8%		11%	12%	6%
me without asking me Qs												
Quality of life												
Quality of life is												
So good it could not be	40%	40%	42%	43%	25%	26%	26%	28%	28%	30%	31%	31%
better/very good												
Good	41%	41%	40%	39%	30%	30%	30%	30%	28%	28%	29%	26%
Alright	17%	17%	16%	16%	34%	33%	33%	32%	31%	30%	29%	29%
Bad	1%	1%	1%	1%	7%	7%	7%	7%	8%	7%	7%	9%
So bad it could not be	1%	1%	1%	1%	4%	4%	3%	3%	5%	5%	5%	5%
worse/very bad												

Satisfaction with services												
Extremely/very satisfied	72%	75%	76%	76%	62%	62%	63%	62%	61%	62%	64%	61%
Quite satisfied	20%	18%	17%	17%	29%	28%	28%	29%	26%	26%	26%	26%
Neither satisfied nor	6%	5%	5%	5%	6%	6%	6%	6%	8%	7%	6%	7%
dissatisfied												
Quite dissatisfied	1%	1%	1%	1%	2%	2%	2%	2%	3%	2%	2%	3%
Extremely/very	0%	1%	1%	0%	2%	2%	2%	2%	3%	3%	3%	3%
dissatisfied												
The way I am helped and tr	eated											
Makes me think/feel	76%	77%	76%	77%	56%	56%	55%	57%	58%	60%	60%	61%
better about myself												
Does not affect way I	21%	20%	20%	19%	34%	34%	33%	33%	31%	29%	29%	28%
think/feel												
Sometimes undermines	3%	3%	3%	3%	9%	9%	11%	9%	9%	9%	9%	9%
way I think/feel												
Completely undermines	0%	1%	1%	1%	1%	1%	2%	1%	2%	2%	2%	2%
way I think/feel												
General health												
Very good	39%	40%	41%	42%	6%	6%	6%	7%	11%	11%	13%	13%
Good	31%	32%	31%	31%	23%	25%	25%	26%	30%	29%	31%	31%
Fair	23%	21%	22%	21%	48%	47%	48%	47%	40%	40%	40%	39%
Bad	6%	6%	6%	5%	16%	16%	16%	16%	14%	15%	12%	12%
Very bad	1%	1%	1%	1%	6%	6%	6%	6%	5%	5%	5%	4%
Health state today – pain o	r discomfort											
No pain or discomfort		63%	63%	64%		22%	23%	24%		40%	43%	44%
Moderate pain or	Data not	32%	33%	32%	Data not	59%	59%	59%	Data not	49%	46%	45%
discomfort	collected				collected				collected			
Extreme pain or	conceted	5%	5%	4%	conceted	19%	18%	17%	conceted	11%	11%	14%
discomfort												
Health state today – anxiet	y or depressior											
Not anxious or depressed		49%	49%	49%		48%	48%	48%		36%	40%	37%
Moderately anxious or	Data not	48%	48%	47%	Data not	45%	44%	44%	Data not	47%	44%	45%
depressed	collected				collected				collected			
Extremely anxious or	conceted	3%	3%	3%	conceted	7%	7%	8%	conceted	17%	16%	18%
depressed												
Data source: Health and Soc	cial Care Inform	ation Centre	e: Personal Sc	cial Service	s Adult Social Ca	re Survey						

### **Employment**

Major changes to the collection of data related to social care in 2014/15 (see the main report for details of the transition from statistics up to 2013/14 (ASC-CAR, RAP and PSSEX) to 2014/15 (SALT and ASC-FR) mean that social care data (including employment data collected from local authorities) from 2013/14 to 2014/15 are not continuous. Where relevant, this has been marked in employment data tables with a vertical line between 2013/14 and 2014/15 and 2014/15 figures underlined.

Type of work	2008/09	2009/10	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	Compound Annual Growth Rate 2009/10 to 2013/14
Paid or self employed								
30+ hrs per week	700	1300	1295	1185	1075	945	<u>2185</u>	-7.79
16-29 hrs per week	860	1720	1825	1840	1845	1995		+3.89
4-15 hrs per week	1390	2925	3020	3490	3565	3450	<u>5240</u>	+4.2%
0-3 hrs per week	1330	2395	2570	2810	2730	2565		+1.7%
Working regularly but less than weekly	190	425	495	585	630	620		+9.9%
TOTAL paid/self employment	4465	8765	9210	9905	9845	9580	<u>7430</u>	+2.3%
Total paid/self employment – men	2860	5555	5900	6330	6305	6120	<u>4660</u>	+2.59
Total paid/self employment - women	1605	3210	3310	3575	3540	3460	<u>2765</u>	+1.99
Vol. work and naid/calf	645	1115	005	1050	1190	1260	n/2	+3.1%
Vol work and paid/self employment	645	1115	995	1050	1190	1200	<u>n/a</u>	+3.17
Vol work only	4580	8275	7615	8675	9245	9240	<u>n/a</u>	+2.89

People with learning disabilities in England 2015: data tables

Table 8.2: Percentage of Adul	ts with Learnir	ng Disabilitie	es Known to	Local Autho	rities in Empl	oyment 2008	/09 – 2014/1	5
Government office region	2008/9	2009/10	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	Compound Annual Growth Rate 2009/10 to 2013/14
North East	5.9	4.8	5.7	5.7	5.5	5.5	<u>4.7</u>	+3.5%
North West	5.2	5.3	4.9	5.4	5.5	5.2	<u>4.2</u>	-0.5%
Yorkshire & Humber	6.3	5.3	6.3	6.8	6.6	6.2	<u>6.6</u>	+4.0%
East Midlands	5.4	6.0	5.3	5.8	5.2	4.9	<u>3.2</u>	-4.9%
West Midlands	2.9	4.1	5.5	6.3	5.6	4.9	<u>4.3</u>	+4.6%
South West	6.7	5.7	5.7	5.8	7.2	8.1	<u>6.3</u>	+9.2%
Eastern	5.9	6.2	6.0	7.2	6.5	7.2	<u>7.3</u>	+3.8%
London	9.8	8.5	8.6	9.3	9.1	8.8	<u>7.7</u>	+0.9%
South East	10.2	9.6	9.6	9.6	9.7	8.1	<u>7.5</u>	-4.2%
England	6.8	6.4	6.6	7.1	7.0	6.7	<u>6.0</u>	+1.2%
England - men			7.4	7.9	7.8	7.4	<u>6.4</u>	n/c
England - women			5.6	6.1	6.0	5.8	<u>5.3</u>	n/c
Data Source: ASC-CAR L1; NI 146; A	SCOF 1E							

## Safeguarding

Table 9.1: Abuse of Vulnerable Adults (AVA) statistics 2010/11 to 2013/14: 2010/11 to 2012/13 Number of AVA referrals (AVA Table 1); 2013/14 to 2014/15 Number of individuals referred (SAR data)

			Referrals		
	2010/11	2011/12	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15
People with Learning Disabilities					
Already known to local authority	D <sub>m</sub>			15,825	14,535
Previously unknown to local authority	Dat	a not publicly available	2	2,495	1,180
Total	19,460	21,985	20,660	18,320	15,715
All other groups					
Already known to local authority	Down		_	65,735	70,585
Previously unknown to local authority	Dat	a not publicly available	2	19,945	17,120
Total	74,665	85,050	87,250	85,680	87,705
Data Source: AVA Table 1 2010/11 to 2012/13. SAR data 20	013/14 to 2014/15				

## Deprivation of liberty safeguards

annual data

Table 10.1: Number of DoLS completed applications for adults with learning disabilities and all other groups 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Adults with learning disabilities aged 18+ Total 1,550 1,315 1,513 1,304 1,043 n/a All other adults aged 18+ Total 5,607 7,667 9,880 10,583 11,995 n/a Total adults aged 18+ Total 7,157 8,982 11,393 11,887 13,038 62,645 Data Source: Mental Capacity Act (2005), Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Assessments (England) –Annual reports on

	.0.2: Nu arning c						ns gran	ted (G)	and no	t granto	ed (NG) for ad	ults
	2009	/10	2010	)/11	2011	L/12	2012	2/13	2013	3/14	2014/1	5
	G	NG	G	NG	G	NG	G	NG	G	NG	G	NG
Adults w	ith learni	ing disab	ilities ag	ed 18+								
Total	654	896	712	603	814	699	669	635	576	467	8,795	n/a
All other	adults a	ged 18+										
Total	2,643	2,964	4,239	3,428	5,529	4,351	5,877	4,706	7,053	4,942	43,400	n/a
Total ad	ults aged	18+										
Total	3,297	3,860	4,951	4,031	6,343	5,050	6,546	5,341	7,629	5,409	52,195	10,520
Data Sou		•	,	• •	eprivatio	n of Liber	ty Safegu	uards Ass	sessment	s (Englan	id) – Annual repo	rts on

#### **Benefits**

Table 11.1: Total number of people with learning disabilities in England eligible for and claiming Attendance Allowance and Disability Living Allowance

	Atte	ndance Allowar	nce	Disability Living Allowance				
	Eligible	In Payment	% In payment if eligible	Eligible	In Payment	% In payment if eligible		
May-02	3,220	1,810	56%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-03	3,020	1,740	58%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-04	2,930	1,790	61%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-05	2,750	1,730	63%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-06	2,620	1,680	64%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-07	2,420	1,590	66%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-08	2,240	1,500	67%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-09	2,130	1,470	69%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-10	2,050	1,460	71%	n/a	n/a	n/c		
May-11	1,960	1,420	72%	326,930	324,260	99%		
May-12	1,820	1,340	74%	347,550	344,760	99%		
May-13	1,680	1,270	76%	365,430	362,580	99%		
May-14	1,670	1,280	77%	380,090	377,150	99%		
May-15	1,610	1,250	78%	390,120	387,050	99%		
Compound Annual Growth Rate	-5.2%	-2.8%		+4.5%	+4.5%			

Note: All Attendance Allowance and, from May 2011, Disability Living Allowance figures are based on a complete census of claimants. Source: DWP Tabulation Tool http://83.244.183.180/100pc/tabtool.html

#### Family carers

Table 12.1: Estimated numbers of carers of an adult with learning disabilities for whom assessments or reviews were completed Carers assessed or reviewed Carers assessed or reviewed jointly Carers declining an assessment with client separately All client Age 18-64 Age 65 All client Age 18-64 Age 65 All client Age 18-64 Age 65 and and over and over over ages ages ages 2005/06 9,990 8,150 1,840 19,270 15,555 3,715 2,595 2,155 440 2006/07 13,995 17,655 205 12,520 1,435 19,680 2,025 2,440 2,235 2007/08 1,390 285 15,300 13,910 21,410 19,435 1,975 2,510 2,225 2008/09 17,190 16,080 1,110 22,485 21,250 1,465 2,390 1,925 475 2009/10 16,150 15,090 1,060 21,740 20,505 1,235 3,280 3,015 265 2010/11 18,250 1,080 20,890 3,335 150 17,170 19,495 1,395 3,485 2011/12 17,505 16,130 1,375 21,485 20,145 2,850 2,235 615 1,340 2012/13 15,645 14,705 940 22,285 21,195 1,090 2,910 2,755 155 2013/14 20,770 16,160 15,120 1,040 22,590 1,820 3,025 2,885 140 Source: RAP Table C1

Table 12.2: Estimated numbers of carers of an adult with learning disabilities receiving services and information												
		Total number of carers receiving services or information			Services, including breaks for the carer and/or other carers' specific services			Information and advice only				
	All client ages	Age 18-64	Age 65 and over	All client ages	Age 18-64	Age 65 and over	All client ages	Age 18-64	Age 65 and over			
2006/07	30,000	Data not collected		20,000	Data not collected		9,700	Data not collected				
2007/08	34,000	31,000	2,800	25,000	23,000	1,900	8,300	7,500	800			
2008/09	35,000	33,000	2,200	25,000	24,000	1,400	10,000	9,300	800			
2009/10	36,340	34,175	2,165	23,040	21,770	1,270	13,300	12,405	895			
2010/11	37,015	34,655	2,355	21,650	20,400	1,250	15,360	14,255	1,105			
2011/12	35,875	33,520	2,355	20,665	19,425	1,240	15,210	14,095	1,115			
2012/13	35,930	34,010	1,925	20,465	19,490	980	15,465	14,520	945			
2013/14	35,625	33,975	1,650	20,855	20,025	830	14,770	13,950	820			
2014/15	28,390	Data not collected		14015	Data not collected		14,375	Data not collected				
Source: RAP Table C2 (2006/07 to 2013/14); SALT LTS003, Table 2 (2014/15)												